MINUTES OF A WORK SESSION OF THE
THATCHER TOWN COUNCIL
March 25, 2019

Councilmembers present: Mayor Rivera, Councilman Rapier, Councilwoman Smith, Councilwoman Howard, Councilman Welker, Councilman Bryce

Staff present:  Town Manager Heath Brown, Town Engineer Tom Palmer, Police Chief Shaffen Woods, Fire Chief Mike Payne, Deputy Clerk Michelle Mortensen

Visitors:  None


	AGENDA

	Welcome and Call Meeting to Order by Mayor Rivera at 6:30.  He stated that we do have a quorum.  

	Pledge of Allegiance led by Councilwoman Howard.

	Call to the Public.

	None

	Work Session to discuss 2019/2020 Preliminary Town Budget

Mr. Brown stated that I wanted to have a good idea coming into this meeting of how much money we have.  I went line by line on a hard copy and got done with the general fund info and I adjusted things to be what they appeared we had been spending in the past.  I tried to be conservative on the expected income and realistic on costs.  As the way the budget sits right now, we sit $37,000 over budget.  One thing that did help us was the PSPRS match went down 8%.  This budget includes money for the soccer fields, street improvements, and a few new vehicles.  Councilwoman Howard asked if we have fund balances as to where we would sit if this budget is approved.  Mr. Brown answered that the electric fund has a big balance, the sewer has a little, and the sanitation is in the red.  She asked if we have a history of where the fund balance has been the last few years.  Mr. Brown answered yes but I don’t have that at my fingertips.  I have spoken with the auditor and he has said that it is fine for us to transfer money from the electric to our general fund.  The flip side is that we have the lowest electric rates in Graham County.  Councilman Rapier stated that I don’t like taxes more than anyone else.  If we are already charging the lowest rates then I would be hesitant to lower our electric rate.  I would be fine if we took some of that money and moved it to the general fund if we were to put in more streetlights or something like that, which is providing a service.

Mayor Rivera stated that about fifteen years ago we raised the sales tax along with the City of Safford, but left the rate for any purchase over $5,000 at 1%.  If we raised that to 2.5%, it would be additional revenue.  Councilwoman Howard asked what that would do to our retail sales.  Mayor Rivera stated that we have options if we need to be looking for money instead of drawing from savings. 

Councilwoman Howard asked what the $280,000 was for under the sanitation vehicles.  Mr. Brown answered that it was for the garbage truck.  Councilwoman Howard asked if you have thought about financing any of those.  Mr. Brown stated that he wasn’t opposed to looking into that.  While we are on the sewer, we are around $32,000 in the red in sanitation.  If we raised the monthly rate $2 then we would make $48,000.  Garbage trucks are notorious for needing maintenance   Councilman Welker asked if we have ever thought about making trash pickup once a week instead of twice.  Mr. Brown answered that even with the recycling the amount of trips to the landfill and the costs would be the same.  It is something that we could look at.  Councilman Rapier asked if it was enough to handle the backlash from everyone.  

Mr. Brown explained his proposal for raises.  He proposed that we do a 3% salary increase and then based on merit and their review, they could get anywhere from 0-6%.  For those of you who don’t know, we normally get a cost of living increase that everyone got on the first day of the new fiscal year and then a merit increase on their anniversary.  I don’t know that anyone didn’t ever get both of those unless they were at the end of their step.  I would take away the two separate increases and make that one.  Mayor Rivera thinks that is fair.  Councilwoman Howard asked when you are going to do that.  Mr. Brown answered at their anniversary.  Councilman Rapier suggested giving a 1% cost of living increase across the board.  Mr. Brown suggested eliminating the steps but staying between the range.  Mayor Rivera asked how you pinpoint the cost of living increase. Councilman Rapier stated that there is an index that projects that.  Maybe we as a council need to say that we aren’t going to have an increase this year.  Councilman Bryce stated that one of the things about raises is that you can’t ever take that back.  Maybe instead of raises you give them a bonus.  Councilman Welker said that we need to get our hands around this if we are going to change it.  

Under magistrate the budgets are going to look very different.  Last year we had no idea what we would be looking at starting brand new.  We recoup 51% of our costs from Safford, and 18% from Pima.  Judge Rhodes requested some more money for training and I have added a part time clerk, and put in money for a metal detector and a lock box.  


The overall budget in the police actually decreased since our amount that we pay into PSPRS went down.  Chief Woods requested budget for new radios, new computers, some vehicle work on the hummer, and the biggest thing is new tasers.  Chief Woods explained that our tasers are 7-8 years old.  If we replace them it comes out to $17,000.  Next month we will make our final payment on our body cams and then we will have to decide what we want to do with those.  The Governor’s office gave us money for a new vehicle, so we will probably go ahead and replace one of the detectives’ vehicles.  The hummer that we have doesn’t even lock, so if we are going to put equipment in there then we want to make sure that the doors can lock.  

Mr. Brown explained that getting new extrication equipment for the fire department is necessary.  At the mock car accident the other day the equipment we have wouldn’t cut through the car that they had.  Mayor Rivera asked if Pima has that equipment and Chief Payne answered yes.  Councilman Rapier stated that it would be a good thing to go through the United Way to see if you could get a grant for that through them.  Chief Payne stated that we want to get new radios so that we have one for each truck.  Any costs on here, the fire district pays about one third.  
	
In streets, we increased the salary due to the increase in pay for Tommy and Reo Evans to be the assistant street supervisor.  I also increased the amounts for fuel and drainage.  For the Stadium Ave project, it is about $23-25,000 for one side of one block.  We will probably be at the soccer field for six months and then move onto fixing potholes doing different maintenance on things.  

Mr. Brown said that I think we need to hit the electric department to get new GPS equipment.  Mr. Palmer has been using his personal equipment.  Mr. Palmer helps the electric department with mapping and locating different things, so I think it is easy to justify spending it there.  I put the contingency back to a million.  The park is in there at $200,000.  In our IGA with the City of Safford at the golf course we agreed to pay up to $60,000.  The auditors told us that we have to bill Safford and then after they pay us we have to reimburse them from the general fund.  

I think we need to spend a little more money in chip sealing this year. If we have some money left over in streets then we may do some fog coating.  Councilwoman Howard asked if are getting additional money from HURF.  MR. Brown answered that the estimate actually came in at $2,000 less than last year.  Mr. Brown stated that Councilwoman Smith mentioned that Porter lane is only a half street.  Mr. Palmer came up with the figures to widen it, but I see the need more on other streets.  

Under sanitation I think we need to rebuild the Mac truck.  Mayor Rivera asked if the new truck is bigger than this one.  Mr. Brown answered yes.  Councilman Rapier stated that I feel like we need to look at increasing the cost if we are going to stay with the twice a week pickup.  Councilwoman Howard stated that I really feel that we need to look at making this take care of itself.  Councilman Bryce said and maybe incorporate the cost of a new truck every five years.  Mr. Brown stated that I really like the idea of a capital improvement plan so we can see where we are going.  

In our electric department we did increase the street light budget and some money for poles if we want to put some where there aren’t any.  Mr. Brown asked what the thoughts were on hiring a part time retired person to spray weeds.  Councilman Welker liked that idea.  Mr. Palmer did a rough estimate on the amphitheater and the cost was $270,000.  As far as IT projects, we need a document management program.  We are very behind the times.  

Councilman Rapier stated that there have been significant increases in pay every year and we are providing healthcare.  If we don’t address the pay and health benefits then we will get to a point where we could get to a point where we have to address it drastically.  Councilman Welker stated that we really need to look at this and get an understanding to see what the best procedure is to proceed with payroll and benefits.  We want to look at something that is sustainable.  I agree with Randy that bonuses are a good way to go.  Mayor Rivera stated that I think pay for performance is a good thing.  Councilman Welker replied that you can switch to that but we don’t know what the repercussions are.  Councilman Rapier stated that if you go that route, you can reach your max pretty fast.  I don’t know what to do this year, maybe we do a cost of living increase and leave health insurance the way it is this year, but we need to come up with a plan.  Councilman Bryce stated that we as people work for one reason and that is money.  People like to live in the Gila Valley and work for the Town.  How do we keep the current culture by rewarding the high performers and give them what they need, an increase in pay.  If you don’t do something annually then it lowers morale.  We want them to feel valued.  Even those who don’t perform as well, they need some incentive.  I think we give him the 3% and let him give them out as bonuses.  

	Adjournment.
[bookmark: _GoBack]
Motion was made by Councilwoman Smith and seconded by Councilwoman Howard at 8:40.  Motion carries unanimously.




	

